

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the nine months ended September 30, 2016

Dated October 26, 2016

Table of Contents

1.Introduction	3
2. Overview	3
3. Overall Performance	4
4.Selected Financial Information and Discussion of Operations	9
5. Summary of Quarterly Results	12
6.Capital Resources and Liquidity	13
7. Contingencies	15
8. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements	18
9.Significant Transactions with Related Parties	18
10. Critical Accounting Estimates and Accounting Policies	19
11. Adoption of New Accounting Standards and Disclosure of New Standard in the Period Prior to	21
12. Financial Instruments and Risk Management	23
13. Outstanding Share Data	24
14.Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting	24
15. Additional Information	25
16. Risk Factors	25

1. Introduction

The following management's discussion and analysis ("MD&A") of Baylin Technologies Inc. ("Baylin", the "Company", "we" or "us") as of October 26, 2016 should be read in conjunction with (i) our unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 and (ii) our audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 ("Fiscal 2015") and the related notes included therein. These audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared using accounting policies consistent with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"). All amounts are expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated. The MD&A unaudited and audited consolidated financial statements were reviewed by our audit committee (the "Audit Committee") and approved by our board of directors (the "Board of Directors").

Additional information relating to the Company, including our most recent Annual Information Form, may be found at <u>www.sedar.com</u>.

Forward-Looking Statements

This MD&A of the financial conditions and results of operations contains forward-looking statements concerning anticipated developments in our operations in future periods, the adequacy of our financial resources and other events or conditions that may occur in the future. Forward-looking statements are frequently, but not always, identified by words such as "expects," "anticipates," "believes," "intends," "estimates,", "predicts," "potential," "targeted," "plans," "possible" and similar expressions, or statements that events, conditions or results "will," "may," "could" or "should" occur or be achieved. These forward-looking statements include, without limitation, statements about our market opportunities, strategies, competition, expected activities and expenditures as we pursue our business plan, the adequacy of our available cash resources and other statements about future events or results. Forward-looking statements are statements about the future and are inherently uncertain and actual achievements of the Company or other future events or conditions may differ materially from those reflected in the forward-looking statements due to a variety of risks, uncertainties and other factors, such as business and economic risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by the Company in light of the experience and perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments and other factors it believes are appropriate, and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying these statements are reasonable, they may prove to be incorrect, and we cannot assure that actual results will be consistent with these forward-looking statements. Consequently, all forward- looking statements made in this MD&A on the financial conditions and results of operations or the documents incorporated by reference are qualified by this cautionary statement and there can be no assurance that actual results or developments we anticipate will be realized. Some of these risks, uncertainties and other factors are described in our most recent Annual Information Form under the heading "Risk Factors" available at www.sedar.com. For the reasons set forth above, investors should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Unless otherwise stated, the forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A are made as of the date of this MD&A and we assume no obligation to update any forward –looking statements, whether as a result of new information or future events or otherwise, except to the extent required by applicable law.

2. Overview

We are a global provider of innovative wireless antenna solutions with over 38 years of experience in designing, manufacturing and supplying antennas. We strive to meet our customers' needs by being their trusted partner from initial design to production. Our antenna solutions are custom engineered to meet the specifications for our customers' mobile, networking and DAS/small cell needs. Since our establishment in 1978, our business has grown into an international platform with operations in North America and Asia.

3. Overall Performance

3.1 Material issues for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015:

- Positive momentum carried into the third quarter of fiscal 2016, building on the much improved first half of fiscal 2016.
- Third quarter fiscal 2016 Revenue was \$16.9 million, the highest quarterly Revenue amount since becoming a public company in November 2013.
- Year-to-date fiscal 2016 Revenue was up 61%, to \$48.4 million, from the comparable nine month period in fiscal 2015.
- In comparison to the second quarter of fiscal 2016, quarter over quarter sequential growth in Revenue was 8%. The growth was led by the Infrastructure and Networking product categories, which grew by 37% and 39%, respectively, while Mobile posted a seasonal quarterly decline of 10%.
- Gross profit increased in the current quarter to \$4.7 million; a 73% increase from the \$2.7 million generated in the same quarter in fiscal 2015 (gross margin improved by 5 percentage points to 28%). Gross profit also grew, by 7%, from the level posted in the second quarter of fiscal 2016 (gross margin was comparable at 28%). Current year-to-date gross profit was \$13.4 million; a 124% increase from the same period in fiscal 2015 (gross margin improved by 8 percentage points to 28%).
- Operating expenses in the current quarter, at \$5.2 million, were comparable with the same quarter last year. These expenses in the current quarter, when adjusted for non-recurring items of \$0.2 million related to severance, were \$5.0 million, an increase of \$0.3 million from the second quarter of fiscal 2016 (Operating expenses, adjusted for non-recurring items, is a non- GAAP measure).
- Positive Adjusted EBITDA continued into Q3 2016, the third sequential positive quarter. At \$0.6 million, Adjusted EBITDA increased from \$0.3 million in Q1 of fiscal 2016 and \$0.5 million in Q2 of fiscal 2016. This was also an improvement over the comparable quarter last year where the Adjusted EBITDA loss was \$1.3 million. Adjusted EBITDA for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 was \$1.3 million; an improvement from the comparable period in fiscal 2015 where the Adjusted EBITDA loss was \$5.5 million.
- Invested to facilitate further growth, by continuing to hire more engineers and investing \$0.7 million in capital equipment in the first three quarters of 2016. The balance of 2016 will see the launch of our new product introduction line in Tempe, Arizona which will improve time to market for new Infrastructure products.
- Continued to improve liquidity in the quarter through (i) improved cash conversion cycle, to 26 days, and (ii) closed the sale and leaseback of our Israel based R&D facility for total sale proceeds are \$1.9 million (of which \$1.2 million was received in the Q3 2016) with a lease term of 3 years.
- Increased our Cash position to \$9.5 million at the end of Q3 2016; an increase of \$2.8 million from March 31, 2016. Also continued to de-leverage the balance sheet, where Debt and lease obligations declined by 56%, to \$2.7 million, in the first nine months of 2016.

3.2 Outlook

The significant changes made in Fiscal 2015, meant to address the operating losses and negative cash flow incurred in fiscal 2014 and 2015, were meaningful contributing factors to the improved financial results in the first nine months of fiscal 2016. The third quarter of fiscal 2016 saw a continuation of year-over-year ("YOY") growth in (i) Revenue and gross profit, (ii) gross margin expansion and (iii) reduction in overall operating costs, leading to the first sequential positive EBITDA quarters since our Initial Public Offering in November 2013.

Another significant contributing factor to our improved financial results in the first nine months of fiscal 2016 was the improved market position of our Mobile product line with our major customer relative to a year ago. The

Baylin Technologies Inc.

momentum created in the latter part of fiscal 2015 carried into the first three quarters of fiscal 2016, where this product line's year- to-date Revenue increased by 157% from a year ago. U.S.-based telecommunication carriers are predicting growth in network capital spending in 2016, and we believe our Infrastructure products are well positioned to benefit from that occurrence. This is evidenced by the stronger Infrastructure shipments in fiscal 2016 relative to fiscal 2015, which increased by 24% year-over-year ("YOY").

The fourth quarter of every fiscal year experiences some seasonality within two product lines of our business. The fourth quarter this year will be no different, though the seasonal impact could be somewhat greater due to several projects that were delayed. We remain positive about our momentum. While any softness we may experience in Q4 is expect to be seasonally related, we believe the financial metrics will continue to be positive during the balance of fiscal 2016.

Cost management, manufacturing efficiency and product line rationalization are a focus in fiscal 2016 and will continue into fiscal 2017, though management will consider selective investments in order to facilitate continued growth.

While the Board of Directors and management are encouraged by the year-to-date positive EBITDA result, the over-arching focus in fiscal 2016 has not changed; that is continuing the momentum created in fiscal 2016 and 2017 while prudently managing our liquidity. Exploring new opportunities in the Mobile market, continuing to diversify and expand the Networking customer portfolio and further expanding the Infrastructure product portfolio will be the primary focus. Also, management will explore opportunities to increase its capital resources and liquidity in light of the anticipated growth and consequential requirement to fund increased working capital levels.

3.3 Industry & Business Overview

One of the significant changes that occurred mid-2015 was the focus on Mobile, Wireless Infrastructure and Networking sales structure. Mobile, the largest product line area in terms of Revenue, undertook a major initiative with the establishment of the Vietnam manufacturing plant. Establishing this new plant helped regain market share with our major customer, as evidenced by the productline's157%YOY growth in the first three quarters of fiscal 2016. During the last three quarters of fiscal 2015 and into fiscal 2016, LDS production capacity increased in order to meet this customer's demand. In order to facilitate this increase, it necessitated transitioning nearly the entire LDS capacity to Vietnam. The Company expects its Mobile customer portfolio to diversify and grow in the short-term following new design wins announced in 2015.

As a result of the Company's strategy of diversifying its revenue base and becoming less reliant on the Mobile product line, and in particular its major customer, the Wireless Infrastructure product line is seen as a major growth opportunity. Overall capital spending in this market was soft in 2014 and the first part of 2015 however we noted increased spending in the latter part of 2015. We anticipated spending by our customers (cellular carriers in particular) to continue to ramp up in 2016, and we've seen it reflected in the 23% YOY Revenue growth in the first three quarters of fiscal 2016. Consequently, we believe we are well positioned to win additional market share given the breadth of our product offering and expertise in both indoor and outdoor DAS products. A key focus is the expansion of our product portfolio and gaining additional key customers in the mid to latter part of 2016 and more fully in 2017.

The Networking product line remains positioned as the leading choice in the United States for Tier 1 carrier grade gateways. Over the past two years the Networking product line has also been able to diversify its customer portfolio by securing some significant new customers. We have continued to build a robust product pipeline and grow the product portfolio, though are also managing the product life-cycle of mature products.

3.4 Key Performance Indicators

Key performance indicators ("KPI") that we use to manage our business and evaluate our financial results and operating performance include the following:

Operations

Revenue growth

We analyze our sales as one reporting segment. We use indicators to analyze sales such as YOY growth and compound annual growth rate ("CAGR"), and comparison to monthlybudgets.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

We use EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to measure our financial performance and our ability to generate and sustain earnings and cash flow. EBITDA refers to earnings before interest, net finance expenses, taxes, depreciation and amortization and discontinued operations. Adjusted EBITDA refers to EBITDA adjusted for items of an exceptional nature that are outside of the ordinary course of business. Such items include, but are not limited to, one-time items, certain exceptional, certain non-recurring share-based compensation, restructuring costs, recognition of significant provisions and other significant non-cash transactions (collectively "one-time items"). We do not believe these one-time items reflect the underlying performance of our business. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are non- IFRS performance measures. We believe that in addition to net earnings, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are useful complementary measures to pre-tax profitability and are commonly used by the financial and investment community for valuation purposes.

Research & Development ("R&D")

As a leading technology company, we make R&D investments to remain at the forefront of technology as required by our customers and to maintain solutions for the top antenna providers. R&D investments secure our position as an innovative solution provider for our current and potential customers. We monitor our R&D investments according to market requirements and the product categories we aim to enter. We will continue to invest in R&D activities in areas we believe have significant profitable revenue opportunities. Our objective is to accelerate the design and development of the opportunities we believe will provide sustainable profitable growth.

Sales and marketing and general and administrative ("G&A") expense monitoring

We incur sales and marketing and G&A costs that are essential to our business growth. These expense levels are monitored regularly against pre-established budgets.

Financial Position

Liquidity and streaming cash management

As a global company, we maintain a global cash management system which enables us to fund the operations of our subsidiaries. We maintain credit facilities as required at several of our main operating locations to support our sales, manufacturing, and R&D activities. We see cash flow as an important KPI for the organization.

Working Capital requirements

We monitor the individual components of working capital (current assets less current liabilities). The KPI's used are customer collection days, vendor payment days and the level of inventory relative to sales. We monitor working capital levels through a cash conversion cycle ("CCC") on a monthly basis to maintain sufficient, but not excessive, working capital for ouroperations.

Current Ratio

Current ratio is a non-IFRS measure that does not have a standardized meaning and may not be comparable to a similar measure disclosed by other issuers. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities. Monitoring the current ratio helps to assess our level of current assets available to satisfy current liabilities.

Significant Factors Affecting Results of Operations

Our results of operations are influenced by a variety of factors, including:

Revenue

Revenue is derived from the sales of our antenna products. Financial results are reported as one reportable segment. The Company manufactures and sells a variety of antenna products such as antennas for mobile handsets and smartphones, networking and telemetry devices, land mobile radios, telematics and wireless infrastructure antennas. Revenue is impacted by the timing of our customer's product launches, their project deployment plans, and network expansion investment levels by carriers and independent providers.

Gross profit

Our gross profit is impacted by selling prices and sales volumes, product mix and the variable costs of goods sold (being direct materials and direct labour). The Company also commenced lean manufacturing processes in order to optimize and reduce its fixed manufacturing costs going forward.

R&D Expenses

R&D expenses consist primarily of salaries, patent fees, product development costs and other related engineering expenses. Our technological design centers are located in Israel, South Korea and the United States. As such, we often incur significant expenditures in the development of a new product without any assurance that our customers' system designers will ultimately select our product for use in their applications. We are often required to anticipate which product designs will generate demand in advance of our customers expressly indicating a need for that particular design. Even if our customers' system designers ultimately select our products, a substantial period of time will elapse before we generate revenue relative to the possibly significant expenses we have initially incurred.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries, advertising, trade shows, travel costs and other promotional activities. These costs can be material when entering new markets such as the infrastructure market and acquiring new customers, requiring meaningful investments to win newbusiness.

G&A Expenses

G&A expenses consist of costs relating to human resources, legal and finance functions, professional fees, insurance and other corporate expenses.

Non-IFRS Measures

The following are non-IFRS measures. Accordingly, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on them and are also urged to read all IFRS accounting disclosures presented in the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for Fiscal 2015. Non-IFRS measures do not have standardized meaning and our calculation thereof may not be comparable to similar measures.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are non-IFRS measures that we use to assess our operating performance. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are reconciled as follows:

Reconciliation to Operating Loss

000's)					
Three Months Ended September 30,					
	2016	2015	Change		
Operating loss	\$ (451)	\$ (2,296)	(80.4%)		
Amortization and depreciation	790	787	0.4%		
EBITDA	339	(1,509)	(122.5%)		
Termination costs and other one-time costs	219	256	(14.5%)		
Adjusted EBITDA	558	(1,253)	(144.5%)		

(000's)

Nine Months Ended September 30,			
	2016	2015	Change
	\$	\$	
Operating loss	(1,344)	(9,388)	(85.7%)
Amortization and depreciation	2,391	2,661	(10.1%)
EBITDA	1,047	(6,727)	(115.6%)
Termination costs and other one-time costs	301	1,277	(76.4%)
Adjusted EBITDA	1,348	(5,450)	(124.7%)

For the three months ending September 30, 2016, Adjusted EBITDA was positive \$0.6 million; a meaningful turnaround from the Adjusted EBITDA loss of \$1.3 million in the comparable period in 2015. The positive EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA in the current quarter was the third sequential positive quarter, reversing the eight sequential quarterly EBITDA losses incurred in fiscal 2014 and 2015. Increases in Revenue and gross profit in the three months ended September 30, 2016 were the primary contributing factors to the EBITDA improvement.

For the nine months ending September 30, 2016, Adjusted EBITDA was \$1.3 million; a significant turnaround from the Adjusted EBITDA loss of \$5.5 million in the comparable period in 2015. The factors noted above were also the primary contributing factors to the Adjusted EBITDA improvement.

Baylin Technologies Inc.

4. Selected Financial Information and Discussion of Operations

The following table sets forth a summary of the results of operations for the fiscal periods indicated:

Results of Operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015:

Revenue, Cost of Revenue and Gross Margin

(000's)

	Three Months Ended September 30,		NineMont	ns Ended Septemb	er30,	
	2016	2015	Change	2016	2015	Change
	\$	\$		\$	\$	
Revenue	16,945	12,098	40.1%	48,395	30,045	61.1%
Cost of Revenue	12,224	9,373	30.4%	35,006	24,076	45.4%
Gross Profit	4,721	2,725	73.2%	13,389	5,969	124.3%
Gross Margin %	27.9%	22.5%	5.3%	27.7%	19.9%	7.8%

Revenue

Revenue in the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 were \$16.9 million and \$12.1 million, respectively, reflecting an increase of 40.1% YOY. The YOY increase was due primarily to stronger shipments of (i) Mobile products, which increased by 79.9% to \$8.9 million, and (ii) Infrastructure product, which increased by 41.2 % to \$3.5 million, though partially offset by (iii) a decline in Networking product shipments of 3.0%, to \$4.5 million, due to the timing of customer demand.

Revenue in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 were \$48.4 million and \$30.0 million, respectively, reflecting an increase of 61.1% YOY. The increase was due primarily to similar factors as noted above. Our main customer accounted for 51%, 52% and 58% of Revenue for Q3, Q2 and Q1 2016, respectively.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue is comprised of variable costs (such as material cost and direct labour) and fixed costs, (such as indirect labour, other manufacturing overheads and depreciation). Variable costs were \$9.0 million (53.2% of Revenue) in Q3 of fiscal 2016, versus \$6.8 million (56.3% of Revenue) in last year's comparable quarter. The increase in variable costs of \$2.2 million was due primarily to higher Revenue, though the increase was partially mitigated by the product mix. Fixed costs in Q3 of fiscal 2016 were \$3.2 million (18.9% of Revenue), versus \$2.6 million in the comparable quarter in fiscal 2015 (21.1% of Revenue).

For the nine months ended September 30, 2016, variable costs were \$26.4 million (54.5% of Revenue), versus \$16.4 million (54.6% of Revenue) in last year's comparable period. The increase in variable costs of \$9.9 million was due primarily to higher Revenue. Fixed costs in the first three quarters of fiscal 2016 were \$8.6 million (17.9% of Revenue), versus \$7.7 million in the comparable period in fiscal 2015 (25.5% of Revenue). The improved ratio of fixed costs to Revenue was primarily due to the higher production volumes in the first three quarter of fiscal 2016.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased to \$4.7 million (27.9% of Revenue) in the three months ended September 30, 2016. In dollar terms, this level showed an increase from both Q1 and Q2 in fiscal 2016 (\$4.3 million and \$4.4 million, respectively) and 73.3% higher than in the comparable quarter in fiscal 2015 which was \$2.7 million (22.5% of Revenue). The improvement in gross margin (gross profit divided by Revenue) in fiscal 2016 was attributable to the higher production volumes (associated with the increased sales) amortized over a relatively fixed cost base.

Gross profit increased to \$13.4 million (27.7% of Revenue) in the nine months ended September 30, 2016. This represented an improvement from the comparable period in fiscal 2015 (\$6.0 million or 19.9% of Revenue). The improvement in gross margin in fiscal 2016 was attributable to the same factors cited above.

hree Months Ended September 3	rree Months Ended September 30,					30,
	2016	2015	Change	2016	2015	Change
	\$	\$		\$	\$	
Payrolls	1,570	1,090	44.0%	4,378	3,142	39.3%
Other development costs	467	433	7.9%	1,258	1,305	(3.6%)
Depreciation	43	99	(56.6%)	143	319	(55.2%)
Total	2,080	1,622	28.2%	5,779	4,766	21.3%
As a Percentage of Revenue	12.3%	13.4%		11.9%	15.9%	

R&D Expenses

R&D expenses were \$2.1 million in Q3 fiscal 2016, compared with \$1.6 million in same quarter in fiscal 2015. These expenses were \$5.8 million in the first nine months of fiscal 2016, compared with \$4.8 million in same period in fiscal 2015. The increased R&D spending in fiscal 2016 was mainly attributable to the increased headcount, in order to expand the product pipeline for 2016 and beyond.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

(000's)	Three Mont	hs Ended Septembe	er 30,	Nine Month	s Ended September	• 30,
	2016	2015	Change	2016	2015	Change
	\$	\$		\$	\$	
Payrolls	687	724	(5.2%)	1,908	2,206	(13.5%)
Other	102	304	(66.4%)	413	1,142	(63.8%)
Total	789	1,028	(23.3%)	2,321	3,348	(30.7%)
As a Percentage of Revenue	4.7%	8.5%		4.8%	11.1%	

Sales and marketing expenses of \$0.8 million declined in the third quarter of fiscal 2016, from \$1.0 million in the same quarter in fiscal 2015. Payroll-related expenses declined YOY due to streamlining senior sales management at the end of Q1 fiscal 2016, though was partially offset by hiring more sales people. Our belief is these investments will yield benefits in driving the Company's growth strategy in new business areas, thereby diversifying our revenue base and penetrating new and growing markets. There were also decreases in tradeshows, travel expenses and other related expenses as part of the Company's cost reduction initiatives.

Sales and marketing expenses of \$2.3 million in the first nine months of fiscal 2016 declined from \$3.3 million in the same period in fiscal 2015. The decrease was attributable to the factors noted above.

General and Administrative

(000's)	Three Months Ended September 30,			Nine Mont	hs Ended Septemb	er 30.
	2016	2015	Change	2016	2015	Change
	\$	\$	0	\$	\$	0
Payrolls	1,035	899	15.0%	2,788	2,952	(5.5%)
Other	1,190	1,375	(13.5%)	3,612	3,924	(8.0%)
Depreciation	78	97	(19.6%)	233	367	(36.5%)
Total	2,303	2,371	(2.9%)	6,633	7,243	(8.4%)
As a Percentage of Revenue	13.6%	19.6%		13.7%	24.1%	

General and Administrative expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2016 decreased from the three months ended September 30, 2015 by \$0.1 million, whereas these expenses decreased by \$0.6 million in the comparable nine month period, due to the ongoing expense reduction and control initiatives.

Net Income (Loss) for the Period

	Three Mon	ths Ended Septem	ber 30,	Nine Month	is Ended Septemb	er 30,
	2016	2015	Change	2016	2015	Change
	\$	\$		\$	\$	
Loss before taxes	(93)	(2,943)	(96.8%)	(710)	(11,229)	(93.7%)
Income tax expense (recovery)	(267)	1	(26800.0%)	15	132	(88.6%)
Net Income (loss) for the period	174	(2,944)	(105.9%)	(725)	(11,361)	(93.6%)
Basic and diluted Income (Loss) per share	\$0.01	(\$0.16)		(\$0.04)	(\$0.60)	

In the third quarter of fiscal 2016 we recorded an income tax recovery of \$0.3 million on account of utilizing previously unrecognized prior year operating losses.

5. Summary of Quarterly Results

(000's, except per share amounts)						
	Three Months Ended					
	September 30, 2016	June 30, 2016	March 31, 2016	December 31, 2015		
	\$	\$	\$	\$		
Revenue	16,945	15,661	15,789	12,981		
Gross Profit	4,721	4,407	4,262	3,122		
EBITDA	339	524	184	(1,976)		
Adjusted EBITDA	558	494	296	(1,477)		
Net Income (Loss)	174	(311)	(587)	(3,309)		
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share	\$0.01	(\$0.02)	(\$0.03)	(\$0.18)		

(000's, except per share amounts)

	Three Months Ended				
	September 30, 2015	June 30, 2015	March 31, 2015	December 31, 2014	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Revenue	12,098	9,992	7,955	9,440	
Gross Profit	2,725	2,215	1,029	1,261	
EBITDA	(1,509)	(1,699)	(3,518)	(2,957)	
Adjusted EBITDA	(1,253)	(1,298)	(2,898)	(2,957)	
Net Loss	(2,944)	(2,668)	(5,750)	(4,946)	
Basic and diluted loss per share	(\$0.16)	(\$0.14)	(\$0.30)	(\$0.26)	

Fiscal 2015 was characterized as a year of significant transition and change, and as such the Company incurred one-time costs which were essential to effect the reorganization and transition. These expenses included costs for the newly appointed executives and key sales people, as well as pursuing additional business opportunities. These costs were treated as one-time non-ordinary costs and were excluded from Adjusted EBITDA.

Revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2016 continued the YOY growth demonstrated in Q1 and Q2 of fiscal 2016. Revenue in Q3 2016 was the highest since we became a public company in November, 2013. Improvements were also noted in Gross Profit, Gross Margin %, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA in comparison to the same period last year.

Revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2016 continued the YOY growth demonstrated in the latter part of fiscal 2015 and into Q1 of fiscal 2016. While Revenue in Q2 2016 was relatively level with Q1 of 2016 (though a 56.7% increase from the comparable quarter in fiscal 2015), improvements were noted in Gross Profit, Gross Margin %, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA.

Revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2016 increased by \$2.8 million or 21.6% from the three months

ended December 31, 2015. Gross profit increased by \$1.1 million or 35.9% from the previous quarter, benefitting from the growth in Mobile handset sales arising from the continued increased demand from our major customer.

Revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2015 increased by \$0.9 million or 7.3% from the three months ended September 30, 2015. Gross profit increased by \$0.4 million or 14.6% from the previous quarter. The increase in gross profit was as a result of growth in Mobile handset sales, due to an increase in demand from our major customer.

Revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2015 increased by \$2.1 million or 21.1% from the three months ended June 30, 2015. Gross profit increased by \$0.5 million or 23.0% from the previous quarter. The increase in gross profit was as a result of growth in the mobile handset products due to an increase in demand from our major customer and to growth in the Infrastructure product line.

Revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2015 increased by \$2.0 million or 25.6% from the three months ended March 31, 2015. Gross profit increased by \$1.2 million or 115.3% from the previous quarter. This was as a result of growth in sales to Infrastructure and Network customers, coupled with reductions in variable manufacturing costs.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA in the first three quarters of fiscal 2016 were positive, reversing quarterly losses since fiscal 2013. EBITDA in Q3 of fiscal 2016 showed a \$0.1 million increase from the prior quarter.

While the Adjusted EBITDA loss in the fourth quarter of 2015 was higher than in the third quarter of 2015, the fourth quarter was negatively affected by duplicative costs related to the head office transition, the ramp up of R&D, hiring sales staff to support the growth in certain products areas, and normal year end compensation accrual true up. During the second and the third quarter of 2015 Adjusted EBITDA was comparatively level, though was characterized by the comprehensive reorganization and cost reduction initiatives, and hiring of new staff through all areas.

6. Capital Resources and Liquidity

Our capital resources are in part used to fund working capital associated with product launches, invest in design proposals for our current customers, and the capital investments required to sustain and expand our business and manufacturing capabilities in order to meet customer demands.

Liquidity

Our approach is to ensure, to the extent possible, that we always have sufficient liquidity to meet our liabilities as they become due. We do so by continuously monitoring cash flow, current ratio and actual expenses, all compared to our current liabilities and budgeted expenses. We monitor our cash flow weekly, and other metrics monthly.

As at September 30, 2016, June 30, 2016, March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, we had cash and cash equivalents totaling \$9.5 million, \$8.1 million, \$6.7 million and \$11.4 million, respectively. At September 30, 2016 we had access to approximately \$6.9 million credit facilities, of which \$2.7 million was utilized. Our ability to utilize our bank credit facilities is dependent on being able to provide collateral in accordance with the requirements of the banks providing credit facilities to our subsidiaries. Bank credit facilities are for working capital and are secured by our building in China and account receivables from our customers in China and Korea. The company is in compliance with all its financial covenants.

During the three months ended September 30, 2016, cash and cash equivalents increased by \$1.4 million, mainly due to (i) receipt of the remaining proceeds from the sale and leaseback of the land and building in Israel, of \$1.2 million, and (ii) generating operation cash flow of \$0.3 million.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2016 the Company entered into a new \$4.0 million revolving credit facility with Hong Kong Shanghai Bank Corporation ("HSBC", and the "HSBC Facility"). Any drawing on the HSBC Facility will be fully collateralized by cash, which is deposited in a restricted account with HSBC ("Restricted Cash"), the only use of which is to repay any borrowings under the HSBC Facility. There were no borrowing under this facility as at September 30,2016.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2016 the Company repaid a portion of the loan outstanding with the First International Bank of Israel ("FIBI") of \$2.9 million, while the remaining amount was repaid in the second quarter of fiscal 2016.

We do not anticipate that in fiscal 2016 the Company will utilize any of the credit availability under the HSBC Facility, The Company currently anticipates its unrestricted cash, coupled with available credit facilities, will provide sufficient liquidity for the foreseeable future.

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September, 2016 was \$0.3 million; an improvement from the \$7.3 million cash used in operating activities in the nine months ended September 30, 2015. The decreased use of cash period over period was mainly driven by positive EBITDA in the current quarter versus the EBITDA loss in the nine months ended September 30, 2015.

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities

In the nine months ended September 30, 2016, cash provided by investing activities was \$1.2 million, whereas the cash used in the first nine months of fiscal 2015 was \$0.7 million. The improvement in fiscal 2016 was due to the sale of the Israel-based R&D facility, partially offset by the \$0.7 million expended on capital purchases.

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities

In the nine months ended September 30, 2016, we used \$2.9 million mainly for the repayment bank loans in Israel.

Working capital requirements

Working capital requirements are mainly for materials, production, sales and marketing, R&D, operations and G&A expenses. Working capital can be improved (lowered) by increasing sales, decreasing the cost of materials and decreasing the use of subcontractors. Working capital is also impacted by the change in CCC for changes in our customers' and suppliers' payment terms.

Non-cash working capital increased from \$4.9 million as at December 31, 2015 to \$5.8 million as at September 30, 2016. The increase in working capital was primarily due to (i) increased levels of Accounts Receivables and Inventory associated with the increased level of Revenue, though partially offset by (ii) an increase in trade payables due to the higher associated production volumes in the current quarter.

The current ratio was 1.7:1 and 1.5:1 as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The improvement in current ratio was the result of the factors cited above regarding the increase in working capital, particularly the increases in Accounts Receivables and Inventory.

Trade receivables, net

Trade receivables, net, were \$11.8 million as at September 30, 2016, compared to \$11.0 million as at June 30, 2016 and \$12.6 million as at March 31, 2016. The increase from the end of Q2, 2016 was attributable to the higher level of Revenue in the current quarter, though the increase was mitigated by the more consistent, ongoing focus on reducing overdue balances and tighter customer credit terms, coupled with the receipt of the remaining proceeds from the sale of the Israel-based facility.

Inventory

Inventory as at September 30, 2016 was \$7.7 million, compared to \$7.8 million at June 30, 2016 and \$6.2 million as at March 31, 2016. The decrease in inventory in the current quarter, when compared to June 30, 2016, was in response to the expected normal seasonality of the business in the last fiscal quarter of 2016. We anticipate inventory levels to decline over the balance of fiscal 2016.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other liabilities as at September 30, 2016 were \$16.0 million compared to \$14.3 million at June

30, 2016 and \$13.8 million as at March 31, 2016. The increase was attributable to the higher production volumes associated with the inventory build as noted above.

Commitments for capital expenditures

See "Debt - Finance Lease Obligations and Equipment Loan" below for a discussion of our only commitment for capital expenditure as of September 30, 2016.

Credit Facilities

See section "Debt" below for a discussion of our credit facilities as at September 30, 2016.

Contractual Commitments and Contingencies

We are not aware of any other liabilities or contingencies, other than those presented under this section that could materially affect our future business.

Debt

Loans and credit from banks:

At September 30, 2016 the Company had credit facilities with banks domiciled in Canada, China and Korea (collectively the "Credit Facilities"). These Credit Facilities are revolving and renewable by the banks for a period up to twelve months. The bank credit we maintain in China is renewable in February, March and August of every year. The bank credit we maintained in Israel, as noted above, was fully repaid in Q2 2016. These credit facilities bear interest at an annual rate of 3.6%-5.9% subject to the currency of the loan and are collateralized by trade receivables, property, plant and equipment.

In Q1 fiscal 2016 the Company entered into a new \$4.0 million revolving credit facility with HSBC Facility. Any drawing on the HSBC Facility will be fully collateralized by Cash which is deposited in a restricted account with HSBC ("Restricted Cash"), the only use of which is to repay any borrowings under the HSBC Facility.

In Q1 fiscal 2016 the Company repaid a portion of the loan outstanding with the First International Bank of Israel ("FIBI") of \$ 2.9 million. The remaining amount was repaid in Q22016.

Trade and other accounts payables:

As of September 30, 2016, the accounts payable and accrued liabilities were \$16.0 million and will be paid in the ordinary course of business from working capital throughout the balance of Fiscal 2016. As of September 30, 2016, cash and trade receivables amounted to \$9.5 million and \$11.8 million, respectively.

Finance lease obligations and equipment loan:

In Fiscal 2013, we committed to finance lease obligations and an equipment loan for manufacturing equipment funding for specialized manufacturing equipment. As of September 30, 2016, the finance lease obligations were fully discharged.

There are no other risks for contractual defaults.

Limitations on dividend distribution from Galtronics China

In accordance with applicable Chinese laws, Galtronics China is only permitted to distribute up to 90% of its after-tax earnings. As of September 30, 2016, amounts restricted from distribution, which constitute 10% of Galtronics China's retained earnings, amounted to approximately \$0.8 million.

7. Contingencies

Commitments

Galtronics China previously entered into a rental agreement for the premises in China for a five-year period ending in 2016.

Galtronics Korea had entered into rental agreements for three premises in South Korea. As part of the cost

reduction initiatives, the Company consolidated the three premises into one effective September 1, 2015, with a rental period that ends in 2017. All amounts related with the consolidations have been recorded in the three months ended June 30, 2015 and include rental fees, warehousing consolidation and write-off of leasehold improvements amounting to \$0.1million.

Galtronics Israel entered into two rental agreements in Arizona, United States for offices and warehouse space, which agreements will end in 2019 and 2017, respectively.

Galtronics Israel entered into an agreement to sell their land and building for \$1.8 million. As part of that transaction, Galtronics Israel agreed to enter into a 3 year lease for 983 square meters, that commenced in the third quarter of fiscal 2016, with lease payments of \$0.1 million p.a. Galtronics received a total of \$1.8 million on the sale in fiscal 2016.

On April 2014, the Company entered into a rental agreement for premises in Vietnam for a period of five years. The rental period may be extended for up to five years at the Company's option. The company recently amended the lease to return to the lessor a certain area of its leased premises.

On October 2015 the Company had entered into service agreements with a company controlled by the controlling shareholder, for office space, service of certain employees, administrative support and supplies, computers and communication equipment. The agreement automatically renew until December 31, 2016, with a monthly fee totaling \$0.2 million p.a., which may change from month to month depending on the services the Company requires.

Legal Proceedings

In 2009 Galtronics Israel ("GTI') received notice, for possible indemnification, by one of its major customers (the "customer"), for a claim filed against the customer in relation to several U.S. patent infringements. A jury rendered a judgment against the customer for approximately \$38 million which was subsequently appealed by the customer. The appeal was formally dismissed on April 21, 2014. During the relevant period subject to the claim, GTI was not the major antennas supplier for the customer and it is not clear whether such a demand will ever be received, and if so, what would be the amount of such demand. Management and its legal counsel are unable to assess the outcome of the claim against the customer and the effect, if any, on the Company. Accordingly, no provision was recorded in respect of this demand.

Stock Option Grants

a. Galtronics Share Option Plan:

On July 22, 2013, Galtronics' Board of Directors adopted the Galtronics Corporation Ltd. 2013 Share Option Plan (the "2013 Plan"). Under the 2013 Plan, Galtronics may grant options or shares to employees, officers, directors, consultants and other service providers of the Company or affiliated companies. 1,500,000 common shares have been reserved for grants pursuant to the 2013 Plan. Unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, the exercise price of options granted shall be the market price of the shares on the date of grant. The options shall generally vest over a period of four years. The options shall expire eight years after the date of grant.

Former Chief Executive Officer Grants:

On August 23, 2013, Galtronics' Board of Directors resolved to grant the Company's then President and Chief Executive Officer 960,000 fully vested shares for no consideration. The share issuance was subject to the Galtronics' 2013 Share Option Plan. The Company recognized share-based compensation in the amount of approximately \$6.1 million included in G&A expenses in the third quarter of Fiscal 2013.

Former Chief Technology Officer ("CTO') Grants:

On October 1, 2013, Galtronics' Board of Directors resolved to grant the Company's then CTO 75,000 fully vested shares for no consideration. The share issuance was subject to the Galtronics' 2013 Share Option Plan. The Company recognized share-based compensation in the amount of approximately \$0.5 million, which was included in R&D expenses in the fourth quarter Fiscal2013.

Excluding the above mentioned grants, there are no other grants under the 2013 Plan. All future grants will be made pursuant to the Baylin Stock Option Plan.

b. Baylin Stock Option Plan:

The Company adopted a stock option plan effective as of the date of closing of its IPO (the "Stock Option Plan") pursuant to which stock options may be granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company or its affiliates. The Stock Option Plan will be administered by the Board of Directors, which may delegate this responsibility to a committee of the Board of Directors.

The number of common shares issued and issuable at any time under all security based compensation arrangements of the Company (including the Stock Option Plan), cannot exceed 10% of the number of common shares that are outstanding from time to time (on a non-diluted basis) and the aggregate number of common shares issued upon exercise of stock options granted under the Stock Option Plan and any other share compensation arrangements to insiders and their associates of the Company within a one-year period may not exceed 10% of the common shares then outstanding (on a non-diluted basis). The maximum number of common shares issuable to insiders and their associates at any time pursuant to all security based compensation arrangements cannot exceed 10% of the common shares issued and outstanding from time to time. The Stock Option Plan is considered an "evergreen" plan, since the number of common shares issuable upon exercise of the stock options shall be available for subsequent grants under the Stock Option Plan and the number of stock options available to grant increases as the number of issued and outstanding common shares increases. The number of common shares issuable to any one participant under all security based compensation arrangements of the Company (including the Stock Option Plan) within a one-year period, cannot exceed 5% of the common shares then outstanding (on a non-diluted basis).

All stock options granted shall have an exercise price determined and approved by the Board of Directors at the time of grant, which shall not be less than the market value of the common shares at such time.

Unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors in its discretion at the time stock options are granted, one third of the stock options vest cumulatively on each anniversary of the applicable grant date. Subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors and as set out below, stock options expire no later than seven years after the date of grant.

On August 24, 2015 the Company's Board of Directors resolved to grant the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer 925,000 share options subject to the Stock Option Plan. These options vest as follows: (i) 130,000 options vested on August 24, 2016, (ii) 240,000 options vested on March 9, 2016, (iii) 130,000 will vest on August 24, 2017, and (iv) 425,000 options will vest at the discretion of the Board of Directors, upon recommendation from the Corporate Governance and Compensation Committee, following final review of the performance of the Company for the fiscal year 2016. The options shall expire 5 years following their grant date. As of September 30, 2016, 370,000 options were fully vested. In the event of change of control over the Company, all unvested share options will be vested immediately. As for September 30, 2016 the number of share options outstanding is 925,000, with weighted average exercise price of CAD \$1.51. The remaining weighted average contractual life of the share options is 4.33 years.

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using a Black & Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted.

Expected volatility of the share prices (%)	44.42-45.29
Risk-free interest rate (%)	0.9
Expected life of share options (years)	2.67-3.25
Share price (CAD)	1.50
Option fair value at the grant date (CAD)	0.44-0.48

c. Directors' Deferred Share Unit Plan:

The Company adopted a deferred share unit plan (the "DSU Plan") dated November 27, 2013, which plan will form part of its long-term incentive compensation arrangements for directors. The number of deferred share units ("DSUs") issuable under the DSU Plan at any time must not exceed 500,000 units.

The DSU Plan provides that directors may elect to receive all or a portion that is no less than fifty percent (50%) of their annual retainers (each, an "Annual Retainer") in DSUs. If no election is made in accordance with the terms of the DSU Plan, a deemed election of 50% shall apply. The portion or percentage of an Annual Retainer to be granted as DSUs, as elected or deemed to be elected in accordance with the terms of the DSU Plan, will be determined on the first business day each month of the fiscal year for which such Annual Retainer is payable, and the number of DSUs to be granted shall be based on each completed month of active employment. The DSU grant shall be settled by issuance of common shares on the date that such participant ceases to be a director of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The following table lists the number of DSU during the current year:

	Number of DSU	Weighted average in CAD \$
DSUs outstanding as of December 31, 2015 DSUs granted during Fiscal 2016	139,423 64,635	3.50
		2 0
DSUs outstanding as of September 30, 2016	204,048	2.35

8. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not created, and are not party to, any special purpose or off-balance sheet entities for the purpose of raising capital, incurring debt or operating our business. We do not have any relationships or arrangements with entities that are not consolidated into our financial statements that are reasonably likely to materially affect liquidity or the availability of capital resources.

9. Significant Transactions with Related Parties

Shared Services Agreement – In September 2012, Galtronics entered into a shared services agreement (the

"Shared Services Agreement") with Medimor, a company controlled by an affiliate of our Principal Shareholder, pursuant to which Medimor agreed to lease 500 square meters of office space from the corporate offices of Galtronics at 1 Tsivonit St., Upper Tiberias Industrial Zone. The term of the Shared Services Agreement will continue until terminated by either party and the rent payable by Medimor to Galtronics is NIS 14,200/month (approximately \$4,100/month). Pursuant to the Shared Services Agreement, Galtronics and Medimor share, on a pro rata basis, certain overhead costs associated with the premises. For Fiscal 2014 and 2015, the amounts Galtronics recorded for shared services transactions granted to Medimor were not material.

President & CEO Agreement - On August 24, 2015, the board of directors appointed Mr. Randy Dewey as President and Chief Executive Officer (the "CEO"). The Company entered into an executive employment agreement with the CEO effective of April 1, 2015 for (i) annual remuneration of CAD \$425,000 base salary, (ii) participation in the Company's group insurance benefits plan available to other senior executives, and be entitled to bonuses in the consideration of stock options as described previously in the Stock option plan section. According with the terms of the agreement the executive will be entitled to Exit Event Bonus (EEB) as a one-time special bonus to be paid to the Executive upon a Change of Control of the Company. The consideration of the EEB will be equal up to two times Base Salary (less required deductions) to be paid in cash or securities of the Company as determined by the Board and immediate vesting of any unvested share options as previously mentioned.

In October 2015 the Company entered into service agreements with a company controlled by its principal shareholder, for office space, service of certain employees, administrative support and supplies, computers and communication equipment. The agreement automatically renewed until December 31, 2016, with a monthly fee totaling \$0.2 million p.a., which may change from month to month depending on the services the Company requires. This agreement was approved by the independent Directors.

10. Adoption of New Accounting Standards and Disclosure of New Standard in the Period Prior to Their Adoption

Their Adoption

Please refer to Note 5 of the Interim Unaudited Financial Statements as of September 30, 2016.

11. Financial Instruments and Risk Management

Financial Risk Factors:

Our activities expose us to various financial risks such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and credit risk and liquidity risk, as discussed below. Our comprehensive risk management plan focuses on activities that reduce to a minimum any possible adverse effects on our consolidated financial performance.

Market risk:

Foreign exchange risk:

The major portion of revenue is earned in USD, as such, the financial statements of the Company are reported in USD. The other portions are earned in other currencies such as Chinese Yuan Renminbi ("RMB") and South Korean Won ("KRW"). However, these portions are USD driven since customers total product costing is USD based. A portion of the operating costs are realized in currencies other than the functional currencies of relevant entities. As a result, we are exposed to currency risk on these operations. Also, additional earnings volatility arises from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the rate of exchange at the end of each reporting period, the impact of which is reported as a foreign exchange gain or loss in finance expenses.

Our objective in managing currency risk is to minimize exposure to currencies other than functional currency. Our policy is to match foreign denominated assets with foreign denominated liabilities.

Interest rate risk:

We believe that interest rate risk is low as our short and long-term loans have either fixed rates or variable interest rates determined by reference to the LIBOR. The LIBOR rate fluctuations in Fiscal year 2015 and in Fiscal year 2014 were minor. Based on our experience in Israel and China in the past few years, the interest rate was relatively steady in areas where debt was highly concentrated.

Credit risk:

A significant portion of our products are sold to major equipment manufacturers of consumer electronics products. These major customers are located primarily in North America, Europe and East Asia. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of the customers. We have a policy of selling our products to customers with an appropriate credit history.

We extend 30-90 day credit terms to our customers and regularly monitor the credit extended to such customers and their general financial condition but do not require collateral as security for these receivables. We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the factors that affect the credit risk of certain customers, past experience and other information.

We maintain cash and cash equivalents and other financial instruments in various financial institutions. These financial institutions are located in different geographical areas near our subsidiaries. According to our policy, the relative credit stability of the various financial institutions is evaluated on a regular basis.

We recognize a significant portion of our revenue from a limited number of customers. The loss of, or a significant reduction in, orders from one or more of our major customers would adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. In particular, we received 43% and 54% of revenue, directly and indirectly, from Samsung and its subcontractors for the year ended December 31, 2015 for the three quarters ended September 30, 2016, respectively.

Liquidity risk:

We monitor our liquidity risk through use of quarterly budgets and cash flow projection tools. The objective is to maintain sufficient liquidity by a combination of cash on hand, borrowings under our Credit Facilities, and generating operating cash flow.

12. Outstanding Share Data

As of October 26, 2015, the Company had 18,808,364 fully paid and non-assessable Common Shares issued and outstanding.

13. Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS. Based on a review of the Company's internal control procedures, management believes its internal controls and procedures are appropriately designed as at September 30, 2016.

No significant changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting occurred during the nine months ended September 30, 2016 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management is also responsible for the design and effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that material information related to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to the Company's certifying officers. The Company's Interim President and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have each evaluated the design of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as at September 30, 2016 and have concluded that these controls and procedures were appropriately designed.

14. Additional Information

Additional information relating to the Company, including the most recently filed Annual Information Form, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

15. Risk Factors

For a detailed description of risk factors associated with the Company, refer to the "Risk Factors" section of the Company's Annual Information Form filed on SEDAR on March 9, 2016.